
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 7, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – MAY 7, 2018 

 
 

Board Room                                  Regular Meeting                                 5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION – Danny Rhea – Ivy Ridge Chapel 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Issue – Opioid Class Action  
(SCHEDULED ONE-HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 6 P.M.) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. VDOT Secondary Six-Year Plan – Jeff Buchanan (Asst. Residential Engineer) 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Mountain Movers – Woody Scott  
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS………………………………………………………………………A-1  
 
RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
Carlton Elliott            4-Year Term 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 7, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………B-1 

 
• Unapproved minutes of April 10, 2018     

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. Russell County & Castlewood Water & Sewer Authority Dante Sewer  
Project Agreement………………………………………………………………………C-1 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Economic Development Forum with Senator Mark Warner……………………. D-1 
 

2. Virginia Opportunity Zone……………………………………………………………..D-2 
 

3. Russell County Animal Shelter Virginia Department of Agriculture &                     
Consumer Services (VDACS) Animal Care & Emergency Response………….D-3 
 

4. CPRWMA Tire Disposal and Transportation Contract…………………………....D-4 
 

5. CPRWMA Public Hearing Held on Disposal and Transportation Rate                       
Change…………………………………………………………………………………….D-5 
 

6. J.M. Conveyors, LLC DEQ Air Permit………………………………………………. D-6 
 

7. Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) Public Meeting.……………….... D-7 
 

8. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...D-8 
 

REQUESTS 
  

9. Authorization of Letter of Support to Governor Ralph Northam                                   
concerning HB 665 & SB378 Coalfield Employment Enhancement                                  
Tax Credit…………………………………………………………………………………D-9 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         May 7, 2018 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

10. Appointments of Russell County College Scholarship Task Force                         
Committee………………………………………………………………………….……..D-10 
 

11. Authorization of VDOT Rte. 82 Resolution………………………………………….D-11 
 

12. Authorization VDOT Bridge Structure #6270 Resolution Intent to                         
Abandon…………………………………………………………………………………..D-12 
 

13. Authorization of Russell County Transfer Station Manpower Agreement                          
with CPRWMA……………………………………………………………………………D-13 
 

14.  CSA Supplemental Allocation Request for Services…………………………….D-14 
 

15. Authorization of Letter of Support to Sunset Digital Communications                                   
for USDA Community Connect Program for the Belfast & Cleveland               
Communities.……………………………………………………………….……………D-15 
 

16. Authorization of Letter of Support RC IDA USDA Revolving Loan Fund                    
Grant……………………………………………………………………………………….D-16 
 

17. Authorization of Letter of Support Appalachian Voice’s POWER Initiative                        
Grant……………………………………………………………………………………….D-17  
 

18. Authorization of Donation for “Kids Fishing Days” for Cleveland &                                 
Honaker……………………………………………………………………………………D-18 
 

19. Authorization of Donation for Honaker “Redbud Festival” ……………………..D-19 
 

20. Authorization of Travel Request………………………………………………………D-20 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 
• RC IDA ……..……………………………………………………………………………...F 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 
• RC Tourism………………………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 
• RC Cannery Reports……………………………………………………………………N 
• RC Building Inspector Dilapidated Building Report..…………………………….O 
• RC Building Inspector Litter Control Report……………………………………….P   



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss a litigation matter pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3712(7). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________  

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Mark Mitchell - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



FY2019 FY2024

$259,476 $0

$0 $0

$82,140 $82,140

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $337,189

$341,616 $419,329

Secondary System
Russell County

Construction Program
Estimated Allocations

Fund FY2020 FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 Total

CTB Formula - Unpaved State $249,377 $0 $0 $0 $508,853

Secondary Unpaved Roads $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TeleFee $82,140 $82,140 $82,140 $82,140 $492,840

Residue Parcels $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

STP Converted from IM $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal STP - Bond Match $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Formula STP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

MG Formula $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

BR Formula $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Other State Match $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

State Funds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Federal STP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

District Grant - Unpaved $0 $350,146 $255,485 $337,189 $1,280,009

Total $331,517 $432,286 $337,625 $419,329 $2,281,702

County Administrator Date

Board Approval Date:

Residency Administrator Date

Page 1 of 3 



Route Previous Additional Traffic Count

PPMS ID Funding Funding Scope of Work

Accomplishment Required FHWA #

Type of Funds SSYP Funding 2019-20 2022-23 Comments

Type of Project Other Funding

Priority #  Total

Rt.0665 Power Plant Rd. PE $0  

107113 0665083P51 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 614 Total $351,297 $598,497 ($247,200) $0 $0 $0 $0

Tier 1 - Road work (CN 
Only)

1.745 Miles East Rte. 614

2.01 1.8  

Rt.0605 Porter HollowRoad PE $0  

109161 0605083963 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

S 0.50mi North of Rte. 604 Total $269,366 $269,366 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

1.70mi North of Rte. 604

2.02 1.2  

Rt.0698 Sykes Drive PE $0  

109162 0698083964 RW $0  $229,774 $0 $0 $0 $0

S 2.00 Mi. W. Rte. 646 Total $248,750 $18,976 $248,750 $229,774 $0 $0 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

1.00 Mi. W. Rte. 646

2.03 1.0  

Rt.0682 Brick Church Circle PE $0  

109166 0682083966 RW $0  $111,842 $138,158 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 65 Total $250,000 $0 $250,000 $111,842 $138,158 $0 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

1.0 Mi. N. Rte. 65

2.04 1.0  

District: Bristol SECONDARY SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM (in dollars)
County: Russell County

Board Approval Date: 2019-20 through 2023-24
Road Name Estimated Cost PROJECTED FISCAL YEAR ALLOCATIONS

Project #

Description

FROM 2018-19 2020-21 2021-22 2023-24

TO

Length

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 665 Rural Rustic Road Project. 
- Russell County.

CON $351,297  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

16006

$0 $0 $0

$0

$0 $0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE 605 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $269,366  $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 698 Blade, Ditch and Surface-
treat

CON $248,750  $0 $0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0 $0

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 682 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $250,000  $0 $0

$0$0

$0 $0 $0 $0

17006

 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 



Rt.0834 Jackie Dye Road PE $0  

109168 0834083967 RW $0  $0 $180,000 $0 $0 $0

S Rte. 632 Total $180,000 $0 $180,000 $0 $180,000 $0 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

End State Maint. 

2.05 0.7  

Rt.0779 Davis Hankins Lane PE $0  

109170 0779083968 RW $0  $0 $13,359 $56,641 $0 $0

S Rte. 603 Total $70,000 $0 $70,000 $0 $13,359 $0 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

End State Maint. 

2.06 0.3  

Rt.0698 Sykes Drive PE $0  

109171 0698083969 RW $0  $0 $0 $375,645 $117,163 $0

S 3.20 Mi. W. Rte. 646 Total $492,808 $0 $492,808 $0 $0 $117,163 $0

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

2.00 Mi. W. Rte. 646

2.07 1.2  

Rt.0679 Thomas Warner Bridge Rd PE $0  

110904 0679083P72 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $220,462 $354,538

1.50 Miles West Rte. 613 Total $575,000 $0 $575,000 $0 $0 $220,462 $354,538

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

Rte. 613

2.08 1.5  

Rt.0679 Tumbez Hollow PE $0  

T- 679083 RW $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $64,791

Rte. 613 Total $485,000 $0 $485,000 $0 $0 $0 $64,791

State forces/Hired equip 
CN Only

Rte. 824

2.09 0.9  

$0 $0

17006

$0 $419,329

$419,329

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 679  - Blade, Ditch and pave CON $485,000  $0 $0 $0 $0

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 834 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $180,000  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

17006

$0 $0 $0

$0

$0 $0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 779 - Blade, Ditch and 
Surface-treat

CON $70,000  $0

$56,641 $0

$0 $0

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

RTE. 698 Blade, Ditch and Surface-
treat

CON $492,808  $0 $0 $0

$375,645 $0

$0 $0 $0

17006

17006

$0

STATE 
FORCES/HIRED 
EQUIPMENT

Rte. 679 (Thomas Warner Bridge 
Rd) Rural Rustic.

CON $575,000  $0

$0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Page 3 of 3 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
APPROVAL OF SECONDARY HIGHWAY SIX-YEAR PLAN (2018/19 THROUGH 2024/25) 

 AND CONSTRUCTION PRIORITY LIST (2018/19) 
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

 

WHEREAS, Sections 33.1-23 and 33.1-23.4 of the 1950 Code of Virginia, as amended, 
provides the opportunity for each county to work with the Virginia Department of Transportation 
in developing a Secondary Six-Year Road Plan, and 
 

WHEREAS, this Board had previously agreed to assist in the preparation of this Plan, in 
accordance with the Virginia Department of Transportation policies and procedures, and 
participated in a public hearing on the proposed Plan (2018/19 through 2024/25) as well as the 
Construction Priority List (2018/19) on May 8, 2018, after duly advertised so that all citizens of the 
County had the opportunity to participate in said hearing and to make comments and 
recommendations concerning the proposed Plan and Priority List, and 
 

WHEREAS, John R. Watson, Residency Administrator, Virginia Department of 
Transportation, appeared before the Board and recommended approval of the Six-Year Plan for 
Secondary Roads (2018/19 through 2024/25) and the Construction Priority List (2018/19) for 
Russell County, Virginia.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Russell County, 
Virginia that since said Plan appears to be in the best interests of the Secondary Road System in 
Russell County and of the citizens residing on the Secondary System, said Secondary Six-Year 
Plan (2018/19 through 2024/25) and Construction Priority List (2018/19) are hereby approved as 
presented at the public hearing. 
 
DONE this the 8th day of May 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
Recorded Vote:                                                
 
Moved by:       ______________ ___ 
 
Seconded by:  __________________ 
 
Yeas:  ________    
                                                                                ________________________________ 
Nays:  ________                                                 Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
                  Russell County, Virginia 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors Information Item 
137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 5/7/18      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations 
 

PRESENTATIONS (Informational Only) (Limited to 5 Minutes) 
 

1. Woody Scott – Mountain Movers 
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
No Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 5/7/18  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Appointments 
RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
Carlton Elliott               4-Year Term 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  Board Discretion.  
SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.  







 
Board of Supervisors                                    Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 5/7/18      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• April 10, 2018 Board Minutes 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



April 10, 2018 

The Board of Supervisors held a budget workshop beginning at 3:00 pm on Tuesday, April 10, 2018.  An 
Executive (closed) session was held immediately following the workshop beginning at 5:00 pm and the 
regular meeting convened at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.  

 The Clerk called the work session to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Mark Mitchell 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk  
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
Matt Crum, County Attorney ( joined the meeting approx. 5:15pm) 
 
Absent: 
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Members of the Board discussed in detail various revenue and expenditure line items as well as new 
budget requests.  The Board agreed to look at all the requests and give recommendations to the budget 
committee. 
 

APPROVAL TO AMEND THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve and amend the agenda with the addition of Executive (closed) Session beginning at 5:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter in to Executive (closed) Session pursuant to Virginia code 2.2-3711(A) (7) for discussion concerning 
actual or probable litigation. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Mark Mitchell and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Mark Mitchell – AYE 

 
Invocation by Cuba Porter, Lakeview Church followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
Presentations 
 
Reggie Childers, Lebanon asked the Board to consider the concept of smaller government.  He believes 
that government shouldn’t cost us a lot.  He also discussed the Scenic River designations. 
 
Board Appointments 
 

DONNIE RAMEY APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
 
Mark Mitchell nominated Donnie Ramey 
Carl Rhea nominated Linda Garrett 
 
Linda Garrett – (2) votes, Carl Rhea and David Eaton 



Donnie Ramey – (4) votes, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Mark Mitchell and Lou Wallace  
 
 
Tim Lovelace abstained from the vote 
 
Donnie Ramey was appointed to the Cumberland Mountain Community Services Board to fill the 
unexpired term of Fred Sayers, said term ending December 31, 2019. 
 
New Business 

 
APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 05, 2018 MINUTES 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the March 05, 2018 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Mark Mitchell 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,391,640.98, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Mark Mitchell 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chairperson opened citizens comment period. 
 
Josh Eaton and Jennifer Chumbley stated that they have formed a non-profit organization to try and 
help the community as a whole as well as the equestrians.  The Town of Cleveland and their organization 
would like the County to consider a joint lease with the County to utilize the Old Cleveland School.   
 
Waylon Hart, Honaker also asked that he would be interested in promoting bull riding, rodeos, etc. in 
Russell County and would like to work with the new equestrian association. 
 
Tommy Wright, President SWCC asked that the Board consider budgeting for free two-year tuition to 
attend Southwest Virginia Community College for the County’s high school seniors. 
 
Dustin Keith, Lebanon spoke to the Board representing the Upper Tennessee Roundtable.  He asked 
that they appoint a new member to serve on their Board of Directors.  He also stated that there will be a 
drug free graduation party for the graduates this year sponsored by the Russell County Prevention 
Coalition.   They are in need of a vehicle to give away and are also taking donations to help out. 



 
The Chairperson closed Citizens Comment period. 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL TO PROCLAIM APRIL 2018 AS “SEXUAL ASSAULT AWARENESS MONTH” 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to proclaim April 2018 as “Sexual Assault Awareness Month”. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
AUTHORIZATION OF A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR CTB PROPOSED CHANGES TO PRIMARY RTE. 82 
 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to authorize a letter of support to the Commonwealth Transportation Board for proposed changes to 
Primary Rte. 82, Cleveland Mountain Road. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton and Tim Lovelace 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION OF A PUMP AND HAUL FACILITY AT THE DOG TOWN SOLID WASTE SITE 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a Virginia Department of Health Pump and Haul Facility Permit at the Dog Town Solid Waste 
Site. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
APPROVAL TO TRANSFER SURPLUS VEHICLES TO THE CASTLEWOOD FIRE AND RESCUE AND  TOWN OF 

LEBANON POLICE DEPARTMENT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the transfer of a surplus Ford Crown Victoria to Castlewood Fire and Rescue and a surplus 
Ford F-350 Van to the Town of Lebanon Police Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Tim Lovelace  
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Mark Mitchell 
 

 
 



 
AUTHORIZATION OF A VRA PAYMENT FOR THE CWSA  

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a $31,000.00 Virginia Resource Authority payment for the Castlewood Water and Sewage 
Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye, Mark Mitchell and David Eaton 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION IN SUPPORT OF DANTE MAIN STREET RESOLUTION 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a resolution of support to Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development to 
designate Dante as a Main Street Community. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION OF A LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR APPALACHIAN SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT  
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a letter of support to Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development from 
Appalachian Sustainable Development for grants and  to promote agroeconomics for famers. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A PLAT FOR J. L.  AND VICKI L. ZEIGLER 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a plat for J. L. and Vicki L. Zeigler as requested by the Russell County Planning Commission. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST BY THE SOLID WASTE DEPARTMENT 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 
to approve a travel request by the Solid Waste Department. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 



 
MOTION TO ADJOURN 

 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________                                              _______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                    Chairperson 
  
 



 
Board of Supervisors Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson   
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 5/7/18  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s April 2018 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s April 2018 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s April 2018 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• April 2018 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Items 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

 Meeting: 5/7/18           6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 

 
1. Russell County & Castlewood Water & Sewer Authority Dante Sewer  

Project Agreement………………………………………………………………………C-1 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 his AGRI b,\ilEN L made as of the _ c.la) of _ ___ . 2018. b] and bet\.\ccn the 

CAS TLFWOOD WA IER & SF'vVAGE Al.'THORI IY ("C'v\'SA"). a puhlic boc.11 politic and 

corporate of the Commom\calth of Virginia. and the RUSSELL COUN IY BOARD OF 

SUPLRVISORS ("Count)"). a political subdi\ is ion of the Commom\ealth of Virginia. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS. the County O\.\ns the Dante Sewer System: and 

WHEREAS, the CWSA operates the Dante Sewer System on behalf of the Count) 

under an existing operational agreement: and 

WHEREAS. the CWSA has received funding for the construction of the Dante to St. 

Paul Sewer Project c·Projecf') in the form of $ l .000.000 principal forgiveness and a 

$3.682.800 loan. \.\ith a term of 20-years and an interest rate of zero percent. administered by 

the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality ("·DEQ .. ): and 

WHEREAS. the County has voted to assist the CWSA in providing sanitary sewer 

service to the citizens of Russell County, Virginia: and 

WHEREAS, the County will assign the ownership of the Dante Sewer System to 

the CWSA upon loan closing; and, 

WI lEREAS. the CWSA has wastewater treatment capacity in the St. Paul Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant: and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to reserve a certain wastewater treatment capacit) 

which is a\ailable to the CWSA; and 

WHEREAS, the CWSA and the County are in the process of acquiring additional 

grants that may reduce the Joan amount required for this project; 



:--.;ow. fl Il:REFORL for and in considt:ratJon of the foregoing pn:m1-;es an<l 

mutual benefits to be deri' cd therefrom and other good and valuable consideration. the 

receipt and sufficienc.J of \i\lhich are hereh)' ackno\\ ]edged. the parties hereto agree as 

follm\ -;· 

I. L1pon the CWSA"s closing 'v\ith DEQ. or its agents. of the Project loan. the 

Count) ·s e:-..isting Rural DeYelopment debt associated with the existing Dante Sev.er System 

shall be retired by Project funds and the ownership of the Dante Sewer System shall be 

transferred to the CWSA. An) current debt on the existing Dante Sewer System. other than the 

noted Rural De\elopment debt. V\ill be paid by the County as a separate item apart from this 

agreement. 

' fhe Count) shall execute all documents necessary to effectuate the transfer or 

ownership of the Dante Sewer Sy stem from the County to the CWSA. 

3. On the date of the substantial completion of the Project. and monthly thereafter 

for two hundred thirt)' nine (239) months. the County agrees to pay to the CWSA a sum 

consistent with the following schedule: 

• Months 1-60: s 905 

• Months 61-120: $ 2.572 

• Months 121-180: s -l.238 

• Months 181-240: $ 5.905 

Additionally. the County agrees to pay semi-annual debt paymenb of $92.070. on or 

before the date due. direct!) to DI.:Q"s loan administrator. Virginia Re-;ourees Authority 

(··VRA"") CWSA agrees to coordinate \\ ith VRA during loan closing. as necessan. to - ~ ..... .,, 

ensure the semi-annual in\ oices are submitted Crom VRA directly to the County. 



C'A ~A agrl!e-; to con-;idl!r the combination of the Count) ·s month I; pa; nh.:nl.'> and 

semi-annual debt pa: ments as a month I: arnilabilit) fee for the re-;crvation of \\aste\\ater 

treatment capacity in the St. Paul Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant. ·1 he amount of 

wastewater treatment capacit; shall be calculated at CWSA ·s market rate for governmental 

customers. In the e\ent the Count: uses more than the rcsened wastewater treatment 

capacity, the County shall pa) the market rate for such additional use. This month!: 

availabilit) fee. and the associated wastev.ater treatment capacity, may be reduced b) 

mutual agreement of the CWSA and the County. 

-l. Prior to the date of the substantial completion of the Project the County shall 

continue to reimburse the CWSA for the operational costs associated with the existing Dante 

Sewer System in accordance v.ith the existing contract currently in place. 

5. This agreement is not intended to supersede the existing operational agreement 

until such time as the substantial completion of the Project is accomplished. All other terms of 

this agreement shall become effective on the date of the CWSA's closing of the Project loan. 

6. rhe parties intend that the payments received b1 CWSA be pledged. in 

part. to secure the DEQ Dante to St. Paul Sewer Project loan in the amount of 

approximate!) $3.682,800. 

7. lhis Agreement shall continue and remam m full force and effect for 

twenty (20) years from the date of the substantial completion of the Project. In the event 

th!.! Project loan is retired prior to the termination of the 20-year period. the semi-annual 

debt pa: men ts to VRA. specified in Item 3 of thi s Agreement, cease. However. the County 

agrees to continue to pa) CWSA in accordance with the monthly payment schedule. 



8. In the e\ ent that at the time of loan closing. the final Project loan amount is 

less than $3,682.800. either through the CWSA ·s or the Count) ·s successful securement of 

additional Project grant funds, as a result of Project scope re\ is ions. as a result of fen orahle 

construction hids. or othern-ise. the Count: 's semi-annual debt pa:ments to YRA. specified in 

Item 3 of this Agreement. shall be reduced according to YRA 's loan amortization schedule. 

In the e\ent additional Project grant funds are secured folloV\ing the Project 

loan closing. such funds shall be utili.led to retire the Project debt. At the Count)· .., di scretion, 

CWSA and the County agree to coordinate V\ith YRA to de\ el op a re\ ised amortization 

schedule to include either a reduction in the semi-annual payment amount or a reduction in the 

loan term. 

9. fhi s constitutes the entire agreement between the partie-; and may not he 

modified except in writing executed b: hoth of the parties. 

Witness the following signatures and seals: 

AT! FST: 

Clerk. 

CASTLEWOOD WA !'ER & SFWAGE AUTIIORITY 

By· . . \ ~/11.'•-/ y_ 14J , -; ' .. - -,../\ 
../ """ j (l. ·,I, . //,r,·,,/u}'t(vr J 

Brad Patton. Chairman 

Rebecca Dye. Chairperson 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1–D-20 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 5/7/18    6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for May 2018: 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. Economic Development Forum with Senator Mark Warner……………………. D-1 

 
2. Virginia Opportunity Zone……………………………………………………………..D-2 

 
3. Russell County Animal Shelter Virginia Department of Agriculture &                     

Consumer Services (VDACS) Animal Care & Emergency Response………….D-3 
 

4. CPRWMA Tire Disposal and Transportation Contract…………………………....D-4 
 

5. CPRWMA Public Hearing Held on Disposal and Transportation Rate                       
Change…………………………………………………………………………………….D-5 
 

6. J.M. Conveyors, LLC DEQ Air Permit………………………………………………. D-6 
 

7. Commonwealth Transportation Board (CTB) Public Meeting.……………….... D-7 
 

8. County Project List……………………………………………………………………...D-8 
 

REQUESTS 
  

9. Authorization of Letter of Support to Governor Ralph Northam                                   
concerning HB 665 & SB378 Coalfield Employment Enhancement                                  
Tax Credit…………………………………………………………………………………D-9 
 

10. Appointments of Russell County College Scholarship Task Force                         
Committee………………………………………………………………………….……..D-10 
 

11. Authorization of VDOT Rte. 82 Resolution………………………………………….D-11 
 

12. Authorization VDOT Bridge Structure #6270 Resolution Intent to                         
Abandon…………………………………………………………………………………..D-12 
 

13. Authorization of Russell County Transfer Station Manpower Agreement                          
with CPRWMA……………………………………………………………………………D-13 
 

14.  CSA Supplemental Allocation Request for Services…………………………….D-14 



 
15. Authorization of Letter of Support to Sunset Digital Communications                                   

for USDA Community Connect Program for the Belfast & Cleveland               
Communities.……………………………………………………………….……………D-15 
 

16. Authorization of Letter of Support RC IDA USDA Revolving Loan Fund                    
Grant……………………………………………………………………………………….D-16 
 

17. Authorization of Letter of Support Appalachian Voice’s POWER Initiative                        
Grant……………………………………………………………………………………….D-17  
 

18. Authorization of Donation for “Kids Fishing Days” for Cleveland &                                 
Honaker……………………………………………………………………………………D-18 
 

19. Authorization of Donation for Honaker “Redbud Festival” ……………………..D-19 
 

20. Authorization of Travel Request………………………………………………………D-20 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):                                                                                                          
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s)                                                                                                                     
Board Discretion.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


Virginia Governor - Ralph Northam - Newsroom

http://governor.virginia.gov/newsroom/newsarticle?articleId=26101[5/2/2018 8:17:21 PM]

A Commonwealth of Virginia Website Virginia.gov Find an Agency

VIRGINIA GOVERNOR

Ralph S. Northam

ABOUT THE GOVERNOR THE ADMINISTRATION CONSTITUENT SERVICES 

NEWSROOM EXECUTIVE ACTIONS

Home / News Releases / Governor Northam Announces Nomination of 212 Opportunity Zones

 
For Immediate Release: April 19, 2018 
Contacts: Office of the Governor: Ofirah Yheskel, Ofirah.Yheskel@governor.virginia.gov | Virginia
Department of Housing and Community Development: Amanda Love, (804) 371-7006,
Amanda.Love@dhcd.virginia.gov

Governor Northam Announces Nomination of
212 Opportunity Zones

~Commonwealth maximizes new federal tax incentive program, ensures
local and regional priorities are represented~

 

RICHMOND – Governor Northam today announced the nomination of 212 Opportunity Zones to the U.S.
Department of Treasury. This represents the maximum number of zones the Governor may nominate under the
new federal tax tool that targets low-income census tracts.

“Opportunity zones are an important federal tool to spur vitality in economic growth in communities across
Virginia and we are committed to using them fully in this administration,” said Governor Northam. “By
focusing on local and regional strategies, as well as Virginia’s diverse geography and economic opportunities,
we selected a balance of zones that align with other state and local economic development and revitalization
efforts. This ensures that Virginia is at the forefront of attracting new Opportunity fund investments.”

The Federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 that passed last December included provisions for a new
revitalization tool, the Opportunity Zone and Opportunity Fund. The zones and funds will allow investors to
receive tax benefits on currently unrealized capital gains by investing those gains in qualified census tracts or
“Opportunity Zones.” While the federal government is responsible for defining the investment process, the



https://www.virginia.gov/
https://www.virginia.gov/agencies
http://governor.virginia.gov/
http://governor.virginia.gov/
http://governor.virginia.gov/
http://governor.virginia.gov/about/
http://governor.virginia.gov/about/
http://governor.virginia.gov/the-administration/
http://governor.virginia.gov/the-administration/
http://governor.virginia.gov/constituent-services/
http://governor.virginia.gov/constituent-services/
http://governor.virginia.gov/newsroom/
http://governor.virginia.gov/newsroom/
http://governor.virginia.gov/executive-actions/
http://governor.virginia.gov/
http://governor.virginia.gov/news-releases/


Virginia Governor - Ralph Northam - Newsroom

http://governor.virginia.gov/newsroom/newsarticle?articleId=26101[5/2/2018 8:17:21 PM]

Governor of each state was given until April 20, 2018 to nominate qualified census tracts as Opportunity
Zones, and Virginia was allowed to submit 212 nominations out of the 901 eligible low-income census tracts.

The Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) coordinated the nomination
input process with the Virginia Economic Development Partnership (VEDP). These lead agencies based the
Governor’s nominations on the best available criteria and input to ensure fairness across the state and among
rural, urban, and suburban localities. They received input from localities throughout the Commonwealth in
order to recognize the needs and opportunities at the level of government closest to investors and residents. In
addition, statewide strategic criteria ensured there was balance between evaluating those census tracts in most
need and those with the most likelihood of future investment.

“We received information from localities, potential investors and the general public throughout the
Opportunity Zone nomination process, and we focused on maintaining proportionality based on regional
economic development organization levels,” said Secretary of Commerce and Trade Brian Ball. “These
nominations focus on local, regional and state priorities and ensure a strategic mix of zones with different
types of revitalization needs and development opportunities for potential investors.”

The U.S. Treasury Department has 30 days to respond to the Governor’s nominations and is expected to
accept and approve them as nominated, establishing Virginia’s Opportunity Zones by late spring of this year.
However, the rules associated with qualification of Opportunity Investment Funds and Qualified Opportunity
Investments must also be written at the federal level and are not anticipated to be formalized until later this
calendar year. Virginia’s Opportunity Zones are already areas of significant effort and focus at the state and
local level and these zone nominations are intended to attract additional private investments.

Click here for a link to the Virginia Opportunity Zone website and click here for a map of Virginia’s
nominated zones.

 

###

About the Governor

The Administration

Constituent Services

Newsroom

Executive Actions

VIRGINIA GOVERNOR

ConnectVA

eVA website

Expenditures

State Agencies

Cities & Counties

Elected Officials

AT YOUR SERVICE

Website Feedback

SITE RESOURCES

Virginia Governor

STAY CONNECTED

http://bit.ly/VAOpportunity
http://vedp.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=bf7c530d8e0240c6a911a4b40fb0a357
http://governor.virginia.gov/about/
http://governor.virginia.gov/the-administration/
http://governor.virginia.gov/constituent-services/
http://governor.virginia.gov/newsroom/
http://governor.virginia.gov/executive-actions/
https://www.connectva.org/
https://logi.epro.cgipdc.com/Public/rdPage.aspx?rdReport=Public.PublicLandingPage&rdRnd=60061
http://datapoint.apa.virginia.gov/dashboard.php
https://www.virginia.gov/government/state-employees/agency-directory
http://www.virginia.org/citiestownsandcountiesrelatedlinks/
http://www.virginia.gov/government
mailto: webmaster@governor.virginia.gov


Arlington

Fairfax

Fauquier

Loudoun

Prince
William

Stafford

Alexandria
City of
Fairfax

Falls
Church

Manassas

Manassas
Park

Gloucester

Isle of Wight

James City Northampton

Southampton

Surry

York

Chesapeake

Hampton

Newport
News

Norfolk

Poquoson

Portsmouth

Suffolk

Virginia
Beach

Williamsburg

Chesterfield

Goochland

Hanover

Henrico

Powhatan
City of

Richmond

Bedford

Botetourt

Franklin

Roanoke

City of
RoanokeSalem

Amherst
Appomattox

Bedford

Campbell

Lynchburg

Albemarle

Charlottesville
Augusta

Nelson

Staunton

Waynesboro

Rockingham

Harrisonburg

Clarke

Frederick

Winchester

Chesterfield

Dinwiddie

Prince George

Colonial
Heights

Hopewell

PetersburgSpotsylvania

Stafford
Fredericksburg

Pittsylvania

Danville

Recommended LIC Tracts (207)
Recommended Contiguous Tracts (5)

Virginia Opportunity Zone Nominations



51195931700

51051040300

51167030401

51185020600

5117303

VITA, Esri, HERE, Garmin, USGS, EPA, NPS, USDA

 Search GEOID or Locality+
–

4mi4mi4mi4mi4mi

-81.704 37.105 Degrees

Page 1 of 1Virginia's Nominated Opportunity Zone Tracts

4/19/2018http://vedp.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=bf7c530d8e0240c6a911a4b40fb0a357





















 
 

J. M. Conveyors, LLC 
693 Clydesway Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 
 

 
 

 
Registration No. _____________ 

  
DEQ Air Permit 

 
 

March 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 
D.R. PRICE ENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING, INC.,P.C. 

P.O. BOX 1270 
HONAKER, VIRGINIA 24260 

PHONE: 276-991-9100 FAX: 276-991-9103 



Contents 
 
Air Permit Form 7 Application 
 Local Governing Body Certification Form 
 Air Permit Application Fee Form 
 Air Permit Document Certification Form 
 Air Permit General Information 
 Fuel Burning Equipment 
 Incinerators 
 Processing, Manufacturing, Surface Coating Operations 
 Inks, Coatings, Stains, And Adhesives 
 Air Pollution Control Equipment 

Air Pollution Control Supplemental Information 
Stack Parameters and Fuel Data 
Proposed Permit Limits for Criteria Pollutants 
Proposed Permit Limits for Other Reg. Pollutants 

 
Applicability to 40 CFR 63 
 
Location Map 
 
Process Description 
 
Site Plan/Facility Diagram 
 
Pollution Control Products Co. Manufacturer Information w/Stack Test Data 
 
SDS 
 ESAB Spoolarc 86 Filler Wire 

Secure Tec ES 
 RAL 9016 Traffic White LC 
 Natural Gas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 1 

PERMIT FORMS 
PURSUANT TO 

REGULATIONS FOR THE CONTROL AND ABATEMENT OF AIR POLLUTION 
 

 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

 
AIR PERMITS 

FORM 7 APPLICATION 
 

NEW SOURCE REVIEW PERMITS 
and STATE OPERATING PERMITS 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

http://www.deq.virginia.gov/




Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 4 

VIRGINIA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY – 2018 AIR PERMIT APPLICATION FEES 
 

Air permit applications are subject to a fee.  The fee does not apply to administrative amendments or true minor sources.  
Applications will be considered incomplete if the proper fee is not paid and will not be processed until full payment is received.  
Air permit application fees are not refundable.    
Fees are adjusted January 1 of each calendar year. THIS FORM IS VALID JANUARY 1, 2018 TO DECEMBER 31, 2018. 
Send this form and a check (or money order) payable to “Treasurer of Virginia” to: 
Department of Environmental Quality                                                 
Receipts Control 
P.O. Box 1104 
Richmond, VA  23218 
 
Send a copy of this form with the permit application to: 
The DEQ Regional Office  
Please retain a copy for your records.  Any questions should be directed to the DEQ regional office to which the application will 
be submitted.    Unsure of your fee?  Contact the Regional Air Permit Manager. 
 

COMPANY NAME: J. M. Conveyors, LLC FIN: 35-2595172 

    

COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE: Adam Morris REG.  

  NO.  

MAILING ADDRESS: 693 Clydesway Drive   

 Lebanon, Virginia 24266   

BUSINESS PHONE: 276-883-5200 FAX: 276-883-5799 

    

FACILITY NAME: J. M. Conveyors, LLC   

    

PHYSICAL LOCATION: Russell County Industrial Park Lebanon, VA   

    

 

 
PERMIT ACTIVITY 

 

 
APPLICATION 
FEE AMOUNT 

 
CHECK 

ONE 
 
Sources subject to Title V permitting requirements: 

 

• Major NSR permit (Articles 7, 8, 9) $63,000  
• Major NSR permit amendment (Articles 7, 8, 9)* $10,000  
• State major permit (Article 6) $25,000  
• Title V permit (Articles 1, 3) $35,000  
• Title V permit renewal (Articles 1, 3) $15,000  
• Title V permit modification (Articles 1, 3) $4,000  
• Minor NSR permit (Article 6) $5,000  
• Minor NSR amendment (Article 6)* $2,500  
• State operating permit (Article 5) $10,000  
• State operating permit amendment (Article 5)* $4,000  

 
Sources subject to Synthetic Minor permitting requirements: 

 

• Minor NSR permit (Article 6) $3,000 X 
• Minor NSR amendment (Article 6)* $1,000  
• State operating permit (Article 5) $5,000  
• State operating permit amendment (Article 5)* $2,500  

*FEES DO NOT APPLY TO ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENTS 
AIR PERMIT APPLICATION FEES ARE NOT REFUNDABLE 

 
DEQ OFFICE TO WHICH PERMIT APPLICATION WILL BE SUBMITTED (check one) 

   FOR DEQ USE ONLY 

 SWRO/Abingdon   NRO/Woodbridge  PRO/Richmond Date:         ______________                                  
     DC #:        ______________                                     

  VRO/Harrisonburg   BRRO/Roanoke  TRO/Virginia Beach Reg. No.: _______________     
    

APPLICATION FEE FORM DEFINITIONS: 

http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Portals/0/DEQ/Air/Forms/True_Minor_Definition.docx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/SouthwestRegionalOffice.aspx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/NorthernRegionalOffice.aspx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/PiedmontRegionalOffice.aspx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/ValleyRegionalOffice.aspx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/BlueRidgeRegionalOffice.aspx
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Locations/TidewaterRegionalOffice.aspx


Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 5 

Administrative amendment – An administrative change to a permit issued pursuant to Article 1 (9 VAC 5-
80-50 et seq.), Article 3 (9 VAC 5-80-360 et seq.), Article 5 (9 VAC 5-80-800 et seq.), Article 6 (9 VAC 5-
80-1100 et seq.), Article 7 (9 VAC 5-80-1400 et seq.), Article 8 (9 VAC 5-80-1605 et seq.), or Article 9 (9 
VAC 5-80-2000 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Administrative amendments include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 
 

• Corrections of typographical or any other error, defect or irregularity which does not substantially 
affect the permit, 
 

• Identification of a change in the name, address, or phone number of any person identified in the 
permit, or of a similar minor administrative change at the source, 

 
• Change in ownership or operational control of a source where the board determines that no other 

change in the permit is necessary, provided that a written agreement containing a specific date 
for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage, and liability between the current and new permittee 
has been submitted to the board. 

 
Major new source review permit (Major NSR permit) – A permit issued pursuant to Article 7 (9 VAC 5-80-
1400 et seq.), Article 8 (9 VAC 5-80-1605 et seq.), or Article 9 (9 VAC 5-80-2000 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 
Chapter 80.  For purposes of fees, the Major NSR permit also includes applications for projects that are 
major modifications. 
 

• An Article 7 permit is a preconstruction review permit (case-by-case Maximum Achievable Control 
Technology (MACT) determination) for the construction or reconstruction of any stationary source 
or emission unit that has the potential to emit, considering controls, 10 tons per year or more of 
any individual hazardous air pollutant (HAP) or 25 tons per year or more of any combination of 
HAPs and EPA has not promulgated a MACT standard or delisted the source category. 
 

• An Article 8 permit is for a source (1) with the potential to emit over 250 tons per year of a single 
criteria pollutant OR (2) is in one of the listed source categories under 9 VAC 5-80-1615 and has 
the potential to emit over 100 tons per year of any criteria pollutant OR (3) with the potential to 
emit over 100,000 tons per year of CO2 equivalent (CO2e) (9 VAC 5-85 Part IIl).  PSD permits are 
issued in areas that are in attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards. 
 

• An Article 9 permit is a preconstruction review permit for areas that are in nonattainment with a 
National Ambient Air Quality Standard (NAAQS).  Nonattainment permits are required by any 
major new source that is being constructed in a nonattainment area and is major for the pollutant 
for which the area is in nonattainment. Nonattainment permitting requirements may also be 
triggered if an existing minor source makes a modification that results in the facility being major 
for the pollutant for which the area is in nonattainment.  A major source is any source with 
potential to emit over 250 tons per year of a single criteria pollutant or is in one of the listed 
source categories under 9 VAC 5-80-2010 and the potential to emit over 100 tons per year of any 
criteria pollutant.  However, if any area is in nonattainment for a specific pollutant, the major 
source threshold may be lower for that pollutant.  For example, sources locating in the Northern 
Virginia Ozone Nonattainment Area which are part of the Ozone Transport Region would be a 
major source if they have the potential to emit more than 100 tons per year of NOX and/or 50 tons 
per year of VOC regardless of source category.  Nonattainment permits do not require an air 
quality analysis but require a source to control to the Lowest Achievable Emission Rate (LAER) 
and to obtain offsets. 

 
Major NSR permit amendment – A change to a permit issued pursuant to Article 7 (9 VAC 5-80-1400 et 
seq.), Article 8 (9 VAC 5-80-1605 et seq.), or Article 9 (9 VAC 5-80-2000 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  
Only minor amendments and significant amendments are included in this category.   
 
Minor new source review permit (Minor NSR permit) – A permit to construct and operate issued under 
Article 6 (9 VAC 5-80-1100 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Minor NSR permits are 1) categorically  
required; or 2) issued to sources whose uncontrolled emission rate for a regulated criteria pollutant is 
above exemption thresholds and permitting allowables are below Title V thresholds, and/or 3) issued to 
sources whose potential to emit for a toxic pollutant is above state toxic exemption thresholds and 

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title9/agency5/chapter80/section1615/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title9/agency5/chapter80/section2010/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title9/agency5/chapter80/section2010/


Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 6 

permitting allowables are below Title V thresholds. The minor NSR permit can be used to establish 
synthetic minor limits for avoidance of state major, PSD and/or Title V permits. For purposes of fees, the 
Minor NSR permit also includes exemption applications and applications for projects at existing sources.   
 
Minor NSR amendment - A change to a permit issued pursuant to Article 6 (9 VAC 5-80-1100 et seq.) of 
9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Only minor amendments and significant amendments are included in this category.   
 
Sources subject to Synthetic Minor permitting requirements -  Stationary sources whose potential to emit 
exceeds the Title V threshold (100 tons per year of a criteria pollutant, 10/25 tpy of HAPs, and/or 100,000 
tpy CO2e) but have taken federally enforceable limits, either through a state operating permit or a minor 
NSR permit, to avoid Title V permit applicability. 
 
Sources subject to Title V permitting requirements – Stationary sources that have a potential to emit 
above the Title V thresholds or are otherwise applicable to the Title V permitting program. 
 
State major permit – A permit to construct and operate issued under Article 6 (9 VAC 5-80-1100 et seq.) 
of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  State major permits are for facilities that have an allowable emission rate of more 
than 100 tons per year, but less than 250 tons per year, of any criteria pollutant and are not listed in the 
28 categories under “major stationary source” as defined in 9 VAC 5-80-1615.   
 
State operating permit (SOP) – A permit issued under Article 5 (9 VAC 5-80-800 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 
Chapter 80.  SOPs are most often used by stationary sources to establish federally enforceable limits on 
potential to emit to avoid major New Source Review permitting (PSD and Nonattainment permits), Title V 
permitting, and/or major source MACT applicability.  SOPs can also be used to combine multiple permits 
from a stationary source into one permit or to implement emissions trading requirements.  The State Air 
Pollution Control Board, at its discretion, may also issue SOPs to cap the emissions of a stationary source 
or emissions unit causing or contributing to a violation of any air quality standard or to establish a source-
specific emission standard or other requirement necessary to implement the federal Clean Air Act or the 
Virginia Air Pollution Control Law. 
 
SOP permit amendment - A change to a permit issued pursuant to Article 5 (9 VAC 5-80-800 et seq.) of 9 
VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Only minor amendments and significant amendments are included in this category. 
 
Title V permit – A federal operating permit issued pursuant to Article 1 (9 VAC 5-80-50 et seq.) or Article 3 
(9 VAC 5-80-360 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Facilities which (1) have the potential to emit of air 
pollutants above the major source thresholds, listed in 9 VAC 5-80-60 OR (2) are area sources of 
hazardous air pollutants, not explicitly exempted by EPA OR (3) have the potential to emit over 100,000 
tons per year of CO2 equivalent (CO2e) (9 VAC 5-85 Part IIl), are required to obtain a Title V permit.  For 
purposes of fees, the Title V permit also includes Acid Rain (Article 3) permit applications. 
 
Title V permit modification - A change to a permit issued pursuant to Article 1 (9 VAC 5-80-50 et seq.) or 
Article 3 (9 VAC 5-80-360 et seq.) of 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Only minor modifications and significant 
modifications are included in this category. 
 
Title V permit renewal – A renewal of a Title V permit pursuant to Article 1 (9 VAC 5-80-50 et seq.) of 9 
VAC 5 Chapter 80.  Title V permits are renewed every 5 years and a renewal application must be 
submitted to the regional office no sooner than 18 months and no later than 6 months prior to expiration 
of the Title V permit.  For purposes of fees, the Title V permit renewal also includes Acid Rain (Article 3) 
permit renewal applications. 
 
True minor source – A source that does not have the physical or operational capacity to emit major 
amounts (even if the source owner and regulatory agency disregard any enforceable limits).  For further 
information, click here. 
 

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title9/agency5/chapter80/section1615/
http://law.lis.virginia.gov/admincode/title9/agency5/chapter80/section60/
http://www.deq.virginia.gov/Portals/0/DEQ/Air/Forms/True_Minor_Definition.docx




Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 8 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Person Completing Form:  Stephen E. Maxfield Date: Registration Number: 
 03/20/18  
Company and Division Name: FIN:  35-2595172 
J.M. Conveyors, LLC  
Mailing Address:      693 Clydesway Drive 
                            Lebanon, VA 24266 
Exact Source Location – Include Name of City (County) and Full Street Address or Directions: 
 
Telephone Number:   No. of Employees:  Property Area at Site:  
276-883-5200 14 15.01 acres 
Person to Contact on Air Pollution Matters – Name and 
Title: 

Phone Number: 276-883-5200 

Adam Morris, Plant Manager Fax: 276-883-5199 
 Email: amorris@jenmar.com 
  
Latitude and Longitude Coordinates OR UTM Coordinates of Facility: 
36.8975o Latitude and 81.10929oLongitude 

 
Reason(s) for Submission (Check all that apply):  
 
  State Operating Permit  This permit is applied for pursuant to provisions of the Virginia 
 Administrative Code, 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80, Article 5 (SOP) 
 
 X New Source This permit is applied for pursuant to the following provisions of the 
 Virginia Administrative Code: 
  Modification of a Source  X 9 VAC 5 Chapter 80, Article 6 (Minor Sources) 
   9 VAC 5 Chapter 80, Article 8 (PSD Major Sources) 
  Relocation of a Source   9 VAC 5 Chapter 80, Article 9 (Non-Attainment Major Sources) 
 
  Amendment to a Permit Dated:  Permit Type:  SOP (Art. 5)  NSR (Art. 6, 8, 9) 
 
 Amendment Type: This amendment is requested pursuant to the provisions of: 
  Administrative Amendment   9 VAC 5-80-970 (Art. 5 Adm.)  9 VAC 5-80-1935 (Art. 8 Adm.) 
  Minor Amendment   9 VAC 5-80-980 (Art. 5 Minor)  9 VAC 5-80-1945 (Art. 8 Minor) 
  Significant Amendment   9 VAC 5-80-990 (Art. 5 Sig.)  9 VAC 5-80-1955 (Art. 8 Sig.) 
        
     9 VAC 5-80-1270 (Art. 6 Adm.)  9 VAC 5-80-2210 (Art. 9 Adm.) 
     9 VAC 5-80-1280 (Art. 6 Minor)  9 VAC 5-80-2220 (Art. 9 Minor) 
     9 VAC 5-80-1290 (Art. 6 Sig.)  9 VAC 5-80-2230 (Art. 9 Sig.) 
 
  Other (specify):  
 
Explanation of Permit Request (attach documents if needed): 
 

 
JM Conveyors, LLC is a new company manufacturing conveyor belt structure.  It is located in the 
Russell County Industrial Park in a facility formerly occupied by automotive cable manufacturing and 
wood flooring manufacturing.  The conveyor structure manufacturing may include processes such as 
metal washing and etching, powder coating, and drying which may be regulated by the Va. Department 
of Environmental Quality Air Division.     
 
 
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 



Form 7 – December 14, 2017 
 Page 9 

For Portable Plants: 
 
Is this facility designed to be portable?  Yes X No 
 
• If yes, is this facility already permitted as a portable plant?  Yes  No Permit Date:  

 
If not permitted, is this an application to be permitted as a portable plant?  Yes  No 
 
If permitted as a portable facility, is this a notification of relocation?  Yes  No 
 
• Describe the new location or address (include a site map):  

  
 
• Will the portable facility be co-located with another source?  Yes  No Reg. No.  

 
• Will the portable facility be modified or reconstructed as a result of the relocation?  Yes  No 

 
• Will there be any new emissions other than those associated with the relocation?  Yes  No 

 
• Is the facility suitable for the area to which it will be located? (attach documentation)  Yes  No 

 
 
Describe the products manufactured and/or services performed at this facility: 

Manufacture conveyor belt structures, idlers, and related products 

 
List the Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code(s) for the facility: 
 

3 4 4 9                     
 
List the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Code(s) for the facility: 
 

3 3 2 3 1 3               
 
List all the facilities in Virginia under common ownership or control by the owner of this facility: 
 

Jenmar Virginia 470 Wardell Road Cedar Bluff, Virginia 24609 
Jenmar Virginia 101 Powell Mountain Road Rich Creek, Virginia 24147 
 

 
Milestones:  This section is to be completed if the permit application includes a new emissions unit or 
modification to existing operations. 
 

Milestones*: Starting Date: Estimated Completion 
Date: 

New Equipment Installation   
Modification of Existing Process or 
Equipment 

  

Start-up Dates   
*For new or modified installations to be constructed in phased schedule, give construction/installation 
starting and completion date for each phase.  







COUNTY PROJECTS  
ACTIVITY LIST 

 
 

 

1. Glade Hollow Ball Park – Electrical – (Completed) /lights – (In-Process) /roof repairs – 
(Completed) 
 

1. Oak Grove Community – HVAC/Refrigerator/Stove – Move Refrigerator/Stove/Microwave to 
Center – Cleanup, tile, electrical, paint, door facings.  
 

2. Honaker Ball Park – Lights (Senior Field) (In-Process), Bathrooms, & Girls Baseball Field 
(Completed) 
 

3. Castlewood Community Center – Roof replaced, upper floor remodeled, & lower floor cleaned 
 

4. Cleveland Ball Park -  Brick Dust/Electrical/Ice machine/Bases installed (In-Process) 
 

5. Dante Community Center – Stove (Fire Suppression System) (VDH Inspection) 
 

6. Dante Cleanup – Dante Ball Park right-of-way near old school building (Scheduled) 
 

7. Animal Shelter Floor – Clean & Paint (In-Process) 
 

8. Dante - Dilapidated Houses – Bunch Town (2 Houses) (1 Completed); Completing legal 
requirements for removal of other listed dilapidated buildings (In-Process). 
 

 

 









 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

April 25, 2018 
 
The Honorable Ralph Northam 
Governor of Virginia 
The Way Ahead 
P.O. Box 1475 
Richmond, VA  23218 

Re.: HB 665 and SB378 Coalfield Employment Enhancement Tax Credit; Metallurgical Coal 

Dear Governor Northam: 
 
I write to you on behalf of Russell County Board of Supervisors and respectfully request your signature 
on HB665 and SB378, which would reinstate the Coalfield Employment Enhancement Tax Credit for 
metallurgical coal mined in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
 
As you know, Coal is the most valuable mineral resource produced in the Commonwealth of Virginia, 
accounting for more than five percent of Southwest Virginia’s workforce and nearly twelve percent of the 
region’s total wages. Once enacted, HB665 and SB378 will also be instrumental in helping to diversify 
Southwest Virginia’s economy by supporting regional economic development activities and generating 
important tax revenues for essential regional infrastructure projects.  
 
In addition to these positive regional impacts, virtually all of Virginia’s overseas exports of metallurgical 
coal are transported by rail from the southwest coalfields through the state, where they are shipped from 
the Port of Hampton Roads to international customers across the globe. The Port of Hampton Roads 
exports greater quantities of metallurgical coal than any other U.S. port, amplifying the economic benefits 
to the Commonwealth of a healthy and productive coal industry.  Finally, the coal industry is a vital part 
of Southwest Virginia’s economy and by allowing metallurgical coal, from Southwest Virginia, to reach 
steel manufacturers around the US and the world is an important economic driver for the various 
industries across the entire Commonwealth.  
 
Thank you for your leadership during the 2018 Virginia General Assembly, and we respectfully request 
your signature on this important legislation.    
 
Thank you again. 
 
 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
County of Russell, Virginia   

 



SUPPORT HB 665/SB 378 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

Coal is the most valuable mineral resource produced in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Coal accounts for more than five percent of 
Southwest Virginia’s workforce and nearly twelve percent of the regions’ total wages. Over the past 25 years, the coal industry in 
Virginia has lost over 8,300 jobs and over 255 operating mines. This decline translates into over a 32 million ton decrease in Virginia 
coal production. The effect to the region, its citizens and the economy has been devastating.   
 

METALLURGICAL COAL 
Virginia's coal mining industry serves two distinct end-use markets: steam and metallurgical. The metallurgical coal market purchases 
coals used for coking and the manufacture of steel. In the past year, the production of metallurgical coal in Virginia has significantly 
risen. In 2016, approximately 60 percent of the coal produced in Virginia was metallurgical.   
 
The vast majority of metallurgical coal mined in Virginia is sold to overseas buyers in Asia, Europe and South America. Virtually all of 
Virginia's overseas exports of metallurgical coal are transported by rail from the southwest coalfields through the state, and shipped 
from the Port of Hampton Roads, which exports greater quantities of coal than any other U.S. port. In 2016, Virginia ports exported 
approximately 20 million tons of coal, and of that amount, 90 percent (or 18 million tons) was metallurgical coal. The coal industry 
provides America’s railroads with more traffic and revenue than any other commodity. Virginia’s maritime community also derives 
substantial employment and economic development opportunities through the shipping of metallurgical coal. 
 
Metallurgical coal is the future for Virginia’s coal mining community.   
 
Given the world-wide competition in the metallurgical coal market, efforts by the Commonwealth of Virginia to enhance the overall 
competitiveness of Virginia’s tremendous natural resource, metallurgical coal, is vitally important and appropriate.     
 

PROPOSED COMPROMISE LEGISLATION 
HB 665/SB 378 is a compromise bill. The bill would reinstate and reform the Coalfield Employment Enhancement Tax Credit for 
taxable years beginning on and after January 1, 2018, but before January 1, 2023. Under this forward-looking bill, taxpayers would be 
permitted to claim the Coalfield Employment Enhancement Tax Credit ONLY for metallurgical coal. Before it expired on December 31, 
2016, the credit was available for all coal mined by underground methods, and was not restricted to metallurgical coal.  
 

POSITIVE IMPACT TO THE VIRGINIA COALFIELD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority Fund (VCEDA) receives 15 percent of its refundable credits from the coal tax credit 
program. VCEDA is a regional economic development organization in Southwest Virginia and is charged with the important mission of 
growing and diversifying the regions’ economy. According to the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Impact Statement, the redemption of this 
compromise legislation will have a positive impact to VCEDA beginning in Fiscal Year 2019. The overall positive impact to the Fund to 
promote regional economic development will be: $200,000 in Fiscal Year 2019 through Fiscal Year 2021; $1.2 million in Fiscal Year 
2022; $1.1 million in Fiscal Year 2023; and $1.0 million in Fiscal Year 2024.   

POSITIVE IMPACT TO SOUTHWEST VIRGINIA’S ECONOMY 
Over the past ten years, coal mining companies have paid over $320 million dollars in severance taxes to Southwest Virginia localities, 
accounting for more than 9 percent of all the tax revenue collected. The tax revenue makes a significant ongoing contribution to the 
improvement of roads and water and sewer systems across Southwest Virginia, and helps to fund vitally important upgrades to other 
local infrastructure projects. The compromise bill to reinstate the coal tax credits for metallurgical coal is a vital step to preserve this 
important source of regional revenue for essential and necessary infrastructure projects.   
 

CONCLUSION 
The compromise bill to reinstate the coal tax credits for metallurgical coal is a forward-looking measure to support Virginia’s most 
important mineral resource, metallurgical coal. In doing so, the tax credit will be instrumental in helping Southwest Virginia’s economy 
transition by supporting regional economic development activities and generating important tax revenues for essential regional 
infrastructure projects. Finally, the production of metallurgical coal, its shipment through the Commonwealth and the export through 
the Port of Hampton Roads has a substantial benefit to the overall well-being of Virginia’s economy.   
 



2018 SESSION

ENROLLED

1 VIRGINIA ACTS OF ASSEMBLY –– CHAPTER

2 An Act to amend and reenact § 58.1-439.2 of the Code of Virginia, relating to coalfield employment
3 enhancement tax credit.

4 [H 665]
5 Approved

6 Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:
7 1. That § 58.1-439.2 of the Code of Virginia is amended and reenacted as follows:
8 § 58.1-439.2. Coalfield employment enhancement tax credit.
9 A. For tax years beginning on and after January 1, 1996, but before January 1, 2017, and on and

10 after January 1, 2018, but before January 1, 2023, any person who has an economic interest in coal
11 mined in the Commonwealth shall be allowed a credit against the tax imposed by § 58.1-400 and any
12 other tax imposed by the Commonwealth in accordance with the following:
13 1. For metallurgical coal mined by underground methods, the credit amount shall be based on the
14 seam thickness as follows:
15 Seam Thickness Credit per Ton
16 36'' and under $2.00
17 Above 36'' $1.00
18 The seam thickness shall be based on the weighted average isopach mapping of actual metallurgical
19 coal thickness by mine as certified by a professional engineer. Copies of such certification shall be
20 maintained by the person qualifying for the credit under this section for a period of three years after the
21 credit is applied for and received and shall be available for inspection by the Department of Taxation.
22 The Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy is hereby authorized to audit all information upon
23 which the isopach mapping is based.
24 2. For metallurgical coal mined by surface mining methods, a credit in the amount of 40 cents
25 ($0.40) per ton for coal sold in 1996, and each year thereafter.
26 B. In addition to the credit allowed in subsection A, for tax years beginning on and after January 1,
27 1996, but before January 1, 2023, any person who is a producer of coalbed methane shall be allowed a
28 credit in the amount of one cent ($0.01) per million BTUs of coalbed methane produced in the
29 Commonwealth against the tax imposed by § 58.1-400 and any other tax imposed by the Commonwealth
30 on such person.
31 C. For purposes of this section, economic interest is the same as the economic ownership interest
32 required by § 611 of the Internal Revenue Code which was in effect on December 31, 1977. A party
33 who only receives an arm's length royalty shall not be considered as having an economic interest in coal
34 mined in the Commonwealth.
35 D. If the credit exceeds the person's state tax liability for the tax year, the excess shall be redeemable
36 by the Tax Commissioner on behalf of the Commonwealth for 90 percent of the face value within 90
37 days after filing the return; however, for credit earned in tax years beginning on and after January 1,
38 2002, such excess shall be redeemable by the Tax Commissioner on behalf of the Commonwealth for 85
39 percent of the face value within 90 days after filing the return. The remaining 10 or 15 percent of the
40 value of the credit being redeemed, as applicable for such tax year, shall be deposited by the
41 Commissioner in a regional economic development fund administered by the Coalfields Virginia
42 Coalfield Economic Development Authority to be used for regional economic diversification in
43 accordance with guidelines developed by the Coalfields Virginia Coalfield Economic Development
44 Authority and the Virginia Economic Development Partnership.
45 E. No person may utilize more than one of the credits on a given ton of coal described in subsection
46 A. No person may claim a credit pursuant to this section for any ton of coal for which a credit has been
47 claimed under § 58.1-433.1 or 58.1-2626.1. Persons who qualify for the credit may not apply such credit
48 to their tax returns prior to January 1, 1999, and only one year of credits shall be allowed annually
49 beginning in 1999.
50 F. The amount of credit allowed pursuant to subsection A shall be the amount of credit earned
51 multiplied by the person's employment factor. The person's employment factor shall be the percentage
52 obtained by dividing the total number of coal mining jobs of the person filing the return, including the
53 jobs of the contract operators of such person, as reflected in the annual tonnage reports filed with the
54 Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy for the year in which the credit was earned by the total
55 number of coal mining jobs of such persons or operators as reflected in the annual tonnage reports for
56 the year immediately prior to the year in which the credit was earned. In no case shall the credit

E
N
R
O
L
L
E
D

H
B

665E
R



2 of 2

57 claimed exceed that amount set forth in subsection A.
58 G. The tax credit allowed under this section shall be claimed in the third taxable year following the
59 taxable year in which the credit was earned and allowed.
60 H. As used in this section, "metallurgical coal" means bituminous coal used for the manufacture of
61 iron and steel with calorific value of 14,000 BTUs or greater on a moisture and ash free basis.
62 2. That the Department of Taxation shall develop and make publicly available guidelines
63 implementing the provisions of this act. In developing such guidelines, the Department shall not be
64 subject to the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq. of the Code of
65 Virginia).



2018 SESSION

ENROLLED

1 VIRGINIA ACTS OF ASSEMBLY –– CHAPTER

2 An Act to amend and reenact § 58.1-439.2 of the Code of Virginia, relating to coalfield employment
3 enhancement tax credit.

4 [S 378]
5 Approved

6 Be it enacted by the General Assembly of Virginia:
7 1. That § 58.1-439.2 of the Code of Virginia is amended and reenacted as follows:
8 § 58.1-439.2. Coalfield employment enhancement tax credit.
9 A. For tax years beginning on and after January 1, 1996, but before January 1, 2017, and on and

10 after January 1, 2018, but before January 1, 2023, any person who has an economic interest in coal
11 mined in the Commonwealth shall be allowed a credit against the tax imposed by § 58.1-400 and any
12 other tax imposed by the Commonwealth in accordance with the following:
13 1. For metallurgical coal mined by underground methods, the credit amount shall be based on the
14 seam thickness as follows:
15 Seam Thickness Credit per Ton
16 36'' and under $2.00
17 Above 36'' $1.00
18 The seam thickness shall be based on the weighted average isopach mapping of actual metallurgical
19 coal thickness by mine as certified by a professional engineer. Copies of such certification shall be
20 maintained by the person qualifying for the credit under this section for a period of three years after the
21 credit is applied for and received and shall be available for inspection by the Department of Taxation.
22 The Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy is hereby authorized to audit all information upon
23 which the isopach mapping is based.
24 2. For metallurgical coal mined by surface mining methods, a credit in the amount of 40 cents
25 ($0.40) per ton for coal sold in 1996, and each year thereafter.
26 B. In addition to the credit allowed in subsection A, for tax years beginning on and after January 1,
27 1996, but before January 1, 2023, any person who is a producer of coalbed methane shall be allowed a
28 credit in the amount of one cent ($0.01) per million BTUs of coalbed methane produced in the
29 Commonwealth against the tax imposed by § 58.1-400 and any other tax imposed by the Commonwealth
30 on such person.
31 C. For purposes of this section, economic interest is the same as the economic ownership interest
32 required by § 611 of the Internal Revenue Code which was in effect on December 31, 1977. A party
33 who only receives an arm's length royalty shall not be considered as having an economic interest in coal
34 mined in the Commonwealth.
35 D. If the credit exceeds the person's state tax liability for the tax year, the excess shall be redeemable
36 by the Tax Commissioner on behalf of the Commonwealth for 90 percent of the face value within 90
37 days after filing the return; however, for credit earned in tax years beginning on and after January 1,
38 2002, such excess shall be redeemable by the Tax Commissioner on behalf of the Commonwealth for 85
39 percent of the face value within 90 days after filing the return. The remaining 10 or 15 percent of the
40 value of the credit being redeemed, as applicable for such tax year, shall be deposited by the
41 Commissioner in a regional economic development fund administered by the Coalfields Virginia
42 Coalfield Economic Development Authority to be used for regional economic diversification in
43 accordance with guidelines developed by the Coalfields Virginia Coalfield Economic Development
44 Authority and the Virginia Economic Development Partnership.
45 E. No person may utilize more than one of the credits on a given ton of coal described in subsection
46 A. No person may claim a credit pursuant to this section for any ton of coal for which a credit has been
47 claimed under § 58.1-433.1 or 58.1-2626.1. Persons who qualify for the credit may not apply such credit
48 to their tax returns prior to January 1, 1999, and only one year of credits shall be allowed annually
49 beginning in 1999.
50 F. The amount of credit allowed pursuant to subsection A shall be the amount of credit earned
51 multiplied by the person's employment factor. The person's employment factor shall be the percentage
52 obtained by dividing the total number of coal mining jobs of the person filing the return, including the
53 jobs of the contract operators of such person, as reflected in the annual tonnage reports filed with the
54 Department of Mines, Minerals and Energy for the year in which the credit was earned by the total
55 number of coal mining jobs of such persons or operators as reflected in the annual tonnage reports for
56 the year immediately prior to the year in which the credit was earned. In no case shall the credit

E
N
R
O
L
L
E
D

SB
378E

R



2 of 2

57 claimed exceed that amount set forth in subsection A.
58 G. The tax credit allowed under this section shall be claimed in the third taxable year following the
59 taxable year in which the credit was earned and allowed.
60 H. As used in this section, "metallurgical coal" means bituminous coal used for the manufacture of
61 iron and steel with calorific value of 14,000 BTUs or greater on a moisture and ash free basis.
62 2. That the Department of Taxation shall develop and make publicly available guidelines
63 implementing the provisions of this act. In developing such guidelines, the Department shall not be
64 subject to the provisions of the Administrative Process Act (§ 2.2-4000 et seq. of the Code of
65 Virginia).





 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

 
The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 7th day of May 2018, adopted the 
following: 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Transportation has constructed Route 82, Cleveland Mountain 
Road, on a new alignment under Project 0082-083-103, C501 (UPC 14808), and 
 
WHEREAS, the highway system changes sketch, attached and incorporated herein as a part of this 
resolution, defines adjustments required in the primary system of state highways because of that 
construction, and 
 
WHEREAS, the new road serves the same citizens as served by those portions of old road identified in 
the project sketch to be abandoned, which portions no longer serve a public need, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this Board hereby requests the Virginia Department of 
Transportation to abandon segment(s) B-A from the primary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-
906 of the Code of Virginia, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this Board requests the Virginia Department of Transportation to add 
segment(s)  A-B to the primary system of state highways, pursuant to §33.2-310 of the Code of Virginia, 
and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, this Board orders that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to 
the Resident Engineer for the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 
DONE this the 8th day of May 2018. 
 
Recorded Vote:                                                
 
Moved by:       ______________ ___ 
Seconded by:  __________________ 
 
Yeas:  ________    
Nays ________                                                   ________________________________ 

                                                 Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
                            Russell County, Virginia  



John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.29

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.15

John.Bolling
Text Box
0.06

John.Bolling
Text Box
1.37

John.Bolling
Text Box
1.27

John.Bolling
VDOT logo

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
BRISTOL DISTRICT

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
LEBANON RESIDENCY

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
RUSSELL COUNTY (083)

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
Changes in the Primary System of State Highways

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
due to relocation & construction on:

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
ROUTE 82, PROJECT 0082-083-103, C501

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
UPC 14808

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
Section 33.2-906 Primary Abandonment

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
Section 33.2-310 Primary Addition

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
Data Correction/Mileage Split

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
A

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
B

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
C

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
D

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
E

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
To Lebanon

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
To Cleveland

John.Bolling
Stamp

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
645

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
662

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
NOT TO SCALE



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

The Board of Supervisors of Russell County, in regular meeting on the 7th day of May 2018, 
adopted the following: 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, it appears to this Board that VA Bridge Structure #6270 located on Secondary Route 
758 from 0.142 mile north of Route 841 to 0.155 mi north of Route 841 a distance of 0.013 miles, 
serves no public necessity and is no longer necessary as a part of the Secondary System of State 
Highways. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: The Clerk of the Board is directed to post and publish 
notice of the Board's intent to abandon the aforesaid VA Bridge Structure #6270, pursuant to 
§33.2-909 of the Code of Virginia, as amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution be forwarded to the 
Commissioner of the Virginia Department of Transportation. 
 
 
Recorded Vote       
Moved By:       
Seconded By:      
Yeas:      ________________________________ 
Nays:       Rebecca Dye, Chairperson of the Board 
 

 



VDOT, ITD, CO, Richmond, VA, GIS SIG, Annex, 8th floor

 
Notes

³
0

0.02
0.04Miles

John.Bolling
Callout
VA Str. #6270

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
RUSSELL COUNTY (083)ROUTE 758 (WILLIS CHAPEL CIRCLE)VA STRUCTURE #6270 (BRIDGE OVER LITTLE CEDAR CREEK)SECTION 33.2-909 ABANDONMENT

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
BOS RESOLUTION DATE:  MM/DD/YYYY

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Polygonal Line

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
A

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
B

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
C

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
D

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
804

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
NEW

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
758

John.Bolling
Oval

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
841

John.Bolling
Stamp



























 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

May 7, 2018 
 
Deputy Assistant Administrator 
Loan Origination and Approval Division 
Rural Utilities Service 
STOP 1597, Room 2844-S 
1400 Independence Ave., SW 
Washington, D.C. 20250-1597 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors would like to take this opportunity to offer our full support for 
Sunset Digital Communications’ United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Community Connect 
Broadband Program Grant for the Rosedale/Belfast and Cleveland communities. 
 
The USDA Community Connect Broadband Program Grant will provide computers and wireless access to 
our rural area residents that has no broadband access.  The Community Connect Broadband Program 
will enable our residents to participate in civic, economic, healthcare, and educational life far beyond 
our geographical region.  In addition, the Community Connect Broadband Program will enrich our 
residents lives through social connectivity with community residents and organizations. 
 
We fully support the Sunset Digital Communications’ USDA Community Connect Broadband Program 
Grant that will provide a better quality of life for the Rosedale/Belfast and Cleveland community 
residents.   
   
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
Board of Supervisors   
Russell County 

 



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

 

  

  

   

  

April 24, 2018 
 
Craig Barbrow 
100 USDA Drive 
Wytheville, Virginia 24382 
 
Dear Mr. Barbrow, 
 
We are writing to express our support for the grant loan application of the Russell County Industrial 
Development Authority (IDA) is submitting to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) titled, 
“USDA Revolving Loan Fund Grant Application.”   
 
We encourage your support of this fund grant that will be very beneficial to small business economic 
development initiatives in our community that will create competitive advantages for our small 
businesses.  The fund grant will enable the IDA to capitalize on the skills and talents of our residents and 
to provide financial assistance to small businesses to improve local business creation.  We feel confident 
that, if funded, this fund grant will serve to enhance opportunities for small businesses in Southwest 
Virginia.   
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors fully supports the Russell County IDA’s USDA Grant Fund 
Application for economic development in our region by identifying business strategies that can benefit 
entrepreneurs in Southwest Virginia.  We believe the IDA’s work is an excellent alignment with our plans 
of economic development in Southwest Virginia. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this proposal and hope you see it as an excellent fit for your funding 
priorities.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
County of Russell, Virginia 
 

 



RESOLUTION OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA, VIRGINIA,  
IN SUPPORT OF THE USDA REVOLVING LOAN FUND GRANT 
APPLICATION 
  
 
WHEREAS, the Russell County IDA supports the efforts of local businesses, by utilizing 

all available resources, to obtain a United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Grant for 
the 2018 fiscal year in the amount of $75,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, these funds will be used to establish a revolving loan fund to encourage 

economic growth within the county; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Russell County IDA with the assistance from USDA will use this 

program to stimulate the creation and retention of jobs within the county to continue the 
diversification of the local economy; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Russell County IDA with assistance from USDA will capitalize on the 

skills and talents of our local residents and provide financial assistance to small businesses in an 
effort to improve the longevity and success of local businesses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Russell County IDA will administer the loan program targeting 

businesses within the county and new businesses that will be located in the county; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Russell County IDA is in full support 

of obtaining USDA grant funding for the 2018 fiscal year and all endeavors related to future 
economic development within the county. 

 
ADOPTED this __________day of _________________, 2018. 
  

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

The Members of the Board vote as follows:  APRIL 25, 2018 
 
    Ayes   Nays  Absent 

ERNIE MCFADDIN   _____   _____  _________ 
DICKY LOCKRIDGE  _____   _____  _________ 
CARLTON ELLIOTT  _____   _____  _________ 
ROGER SWORD   _____   _____  _________ 
MIKE HINCHER   _____   _____  _________ 
DAVID MULLINS   _____   _____  _________ 
SCOTT GILMER   _____   _____  _________ 
TONY DODI     _____   _____  _________ 
JARRED GLASS     _____   _____  _________ 
 
 
 



CERTIFICATE 
 
 The undersigned Clerk of the Russell County IDA, Virginia, certifies that the foregoing is 
a true, correct and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by the Affirmative vote of a majority 
of the Russell County IDA members present at a special called meeting of the Russell County 
IDA duly called and held on April 25, 2018, at which meeting a quorum was present and acting 
throughout. 
 
Dated:  April ______2018 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Clerk, Russell County IDA 
 



 
Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Mark Mitchell                                    David Eaton 
At-Large  District 4  
 
Lou Ann Wallace  Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 
  
Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 
  

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

  

  

  

   

April 24, 2018 
  
Karen Fabiano 
POWER Initiative Manager 
Appalachian Regional Commission 
1666 Connecticut Avenue, NW 
Suite 700 
Washington, DC 20009-1068 
  
Dear Ms. Fabiano, 
  
It is my pleasure to write a letter in support of Appalachian Voices’ application for a POWER Initiative 
implementation grant from the Appalachian Regional Commission for the Southwest Virginia Renewable 
Energy and Economies Implementation proposal. This proposal will implement the ARC-funded Solar 
Roadmap for Southwest Virginia, published in November 2017 by the Solar Workgroup of Southwest Virginia. 
 
Representatives from Russell County have been actively engaged in the Workgroup since it was formed in 
2016. In Fall 2017, Russell County Board of Supervisors was the first county in the region to pass a resolution 
to apply for the Department of Energy’s SolSmart Designation program, which will provide no cost technical 
assistance to the county as we update our policies to be inclusive and supportive of solar development. We 
welcome this opportunity to get ahead of the curve and send a signal that our county is a solar-friendly 
investment opportunity. 
 
We are aware of the aggregate RFQ process proposed in the POWER submission and are supportive of this 
approach to developing solar projects in our region. We welcome the chance to use this opportunity to 
pursue solar development in our county, which will reduce administrative burden while ensuring our county’s 
best interests are prioritized in the contractor selection process.  
 
With the rapid economic and employment downturn in Southwest Virginia, especially within the 
coalfield region, your financial support will be critical to Appalachian Voices’ mission and goals to assist 
in developing and implementing a solar roadmap initiative.  The solar roadmap will be very beneficial in 
creating economic development, renewable energy opportunities, and jobs within our region.   
  
In conclusion, we fully support the efforts of Appalachian Voices and the Solar Workgroup of Southwest 
Virginia as they seek Appalachian Regional Commission POWER funding to support a project designed to 
bring new jobs and more renewable energy to our region. 
  
Sincerely, 
 
 
Rebecca Dye, Chairperson 
Russell County Board of Supervisors 
County of Russell, Virginia  




























































































































































	Russell_FY19.pdf
	Sheet1
	Sheet2

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 5/7/18      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Board Appointments.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):  Motion to appoint Board Members.

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 5/7/18           6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports.pdf
	Meeting: 5/7/18    6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):                                                                                                          Board Discretion.
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s)                                                                                                                     Board Discretion.

	Reports.pdf
	Meeting: 5/7/18    6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):                                                                                                          Board Discretion.
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s)                                                                                                                     Board Discretion.

	Opportunity Zone Data.pdf
	virginia.gov
	Virginia Governor - Ralph Northam - Newsroom



	J0aWNsZT9hcnRpY2xlSWQ9MjYxMDEA: 
	form1: 
	query: Search
	button5: 




